
VILLAGE of LAWTON 
VILLAGE COUNCIL MEETING 

125 S. MAIN STREET, LAWTON, MI 49065 
TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 13, 2024 – 7:00 P.M. 

 

please silence cell phones 
 

AGENDA 
 

I. CALL TO ORDER 
 

II. ROLL CALL 
 

III. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

IV. CONSENT AGENDA 
 

A. Approval of the February 14, 2023 Council Agenda 
 

B. Approval of the January 9, 2024 Council Meeting Minutes  
 

C. Approval of January 2023 Disbursements in the amount of $318,854.18 
 

D. Set a Public Hearing for the Regular Council Meeting on February 27, 2024 to hear 
comment and consider adoption of Lawton 2023-2024 Fiscal Year Budget. 

 
V. COMMUNICATIONS / CORRESPONDENCE / PRESENTATIONS 

 
A. Consider Attorney Opinion on ADA Request for Council Member 

Request……………………………………………...…..Staff Recommends Approval 
 
VI. CITIZENS’ COMMENTS – (Please keep comments to 3 minutes) 

 
VII. PUBLIC HEARINGS / APPOINTMENTS 

 
VIII. OLD BUSINESS 

 

 
 

 



IX. NEW BUSINESS

A. Resolution 01-24: A Resolution to Amend Contract 22-5219 Between the Village of
Lawton and MDOT..……………………………………Staff Recommends Approval 

B. Consider approval of Kalin Construction Bid for Water and Sewer Utilities Extension
on the North Side of Town (North Main Street Utility Extension Project) in the amount
of $999,291.00…………..…………………………...….Staff Recommends Approval 

C. Request to Purchase New Police Radios in the Amount of
$18,252.88……………………………………………....Staff Recommends Approval 

D. Zoning Solutions Clean up Estimates in the Total Amount of
$7,100.00………………………………………..………Staff Recommends Approval 

X. BOARD, COMMITTEE, AND STAFF REPORTS

A. Village Manager – Todd Hackenberg

B. Department of Public Works – Todd Hackenberg

C. Village Clerk – Brittany Rathbun

D. Police Department – Gregory Cordes

E. Planning Commission – Judy Peterson

F. Downtown Development Authority – Gail Dudek

G. Lawton Fire Board – Eric Dudek

H. Lawton Library Board – Brittany Rathbun

XI. COUNCIL COMMENTS

XII. ADJOURNMENT - NEXT REGULAR MEETING DATE – February 27, 2024

The Village of Lawton follows the Americans w/ Disabilities Act of 1990. Individuals with disabilities planning to attend this 
meeting and require accommodations, or those who have questions regarding the accessibility of this meeting or the facilities, are 
requested to contact the Village Clerk, at (269) 624-6407 or brathbun@lawtonmi.org to allow the Village to make reasonable 
accommodations. If you have questions or comments, and you are unable to make the meeting, forward to the Village Manager at      
thackenberg@lawtonmi.org 

Posted February 9, 2023, for the VILLAGE OF LAWTON in VAN BUREN COUNTY, MICHIGAN www.lawtonmi.org   
269.624.6407 



 
Village of Lawton 

VILLAGE COUNCIL 
REGULAR MEETING 

125 S. MAIN, LAWTON MI 49065 269.624.6407 
Tuesday January 09, 2024 

MINUTES 
 

I. Call to Order: President Appleby called the January 9 2024, meeting of the Lawton Village Council 
to order at 7:00 p.m. 

II. Roll Call:  Present: Appleby, Tanis, E. Dudek, Peterson, Turner, G. Dudek Absent: Smith.  Others 
Present: Village Manager Hackenberg, Clerk Rathbun, Police Chief Cordes, and three guests.  

III. Pledge of Allegiance: The Pledge of Allegiance was recited. 

IV. Consent Agenda:  The Consent Agenda included the approval of the January 9 Council Agenda, 
the December 12, 2023 Council Meeting Minutes, and approval of the December 2023 
disbursements in the amount of $183,584.10.  made a motion to approve the Consent Agenda 
supported by.  A unanimous roll call vote approved the motion. 

V. Communications, Correspondence, and Presentations:   
A. Village Manager Hackenberg presented correspondence from IRIS mass communication 

system.  This is a web-based mass notification system that the village approved at the 
end of 2023.  We do not have a start date as of yet, however, Village Manager 
Hackenberg is hoping to have it in effect within the first quarter of 2024.  Once it is set 
up, residents can enroll for notifications about hydrant flushing, water main issues, brush 
pickup or general information when they come in to pay their water bills, or by stopping 
into the office to sign up for this if they do not have water and sewer and would like the 
updates.  

VI. Citizen Comments:  
A. Manuel Pratt from 806 E 4th street came in and wanted to get information on the brush 

pickup.  He wanted to know what the regulations were for pickup, if there were any for 
sizing, or location.  He also wanted to inform the council that it becomes a problem if it 
stays too long.  He stated that last summer a small fire was started when part of a 
transformer fell onto his brush pile.  He stated that his brush pile has been there since 
mid-July.  He wanted to make sure he is following regulations correctly to get the brush 
picked up.  President Appleby stated that we have had some notable issues this year, 
and it is not for lack of trying that it hasn’t gotten done but we have had some staffing 
and some equipment issues.  Village Manager Hackenberg apologized that it has been 
so long since his brush has not been picked up. He stated that that time frame is 



unacceptable.  Hackenberg stated we do have some regulations, each residence needs 
to have its own pile, residents cannot combine piles in front of empty lots, piles can only 
be 8ft wide, and brush is picked up between April through October.  Anything outside of 
these regulations may cause residents brush to be passed over.  October through April 
there is no brush pick up, unless a bad storm goes through town.  Hackenberg stated for 
anyone who would like to review the regulations he would be happy to provide a copy.  
Both Village Manager Hackenberg, and President Appleby stated that they appreciated 
him bringing this to a council meeting, and the Village will get this rectified.  

VI:  Public Hearings/Appointments/Proclamations: None.  

VII. Old Business:  

VII:  New Business:  
A. President Appleby brought a Consulting services agreement with New Growth for RAP 

(Revitalization and Placemaking 2.0) Grant to the floor for consideration.  Discussion 
ensued and Village Manager Hackenberg explained that this consulting firm will help us 
ensure that we meet all of the remaining criteria for the RAP Grant.  Trustee Peterson 
made a motion to enter into a consulting services agreement with New Growth for RAP 
Grant Administration in the amount of $29,500.00 per year to be billed in equal monthly 
increments, with a correction looked into for section 9F, which states that “this law is in 
accordance with the State of Arkansas.” It should be for the State of Michigan.   Seconded 
by trustee E. Dudek.  Roll call vote taken with all in favor and none opposed.  Motion 
carried.  

B. President Appleby brought the Van Buren County 2024 Citizen Planner Program to the 
floor for Discussion.  Village Manager Hackenberg stated this would be good for both 
Council and Planning Commission to go through, however, unfortunately it is on 
Tuesdays.  President Appleby stated for March and April’s Meeting, we could move the 
meeting if someone would like to go from either Council or Planning Commission would 
like to go.  

C. President Appleby brought the next regularly scheduled council meeting set for January 
23rd, 2024 to the floor for discussion.  President Appleby stated the last Planning 
Commission meeting was really good, and they would like to continue that.  President 
Appleby proposed that they would like to cancel the January 23rd Village Council 
Meeting, and instead attend the joint meeting on January 25th to discuss the Zoning 
Ordinances. Council agreed to cancel the January 23rd Council Meeting in favor of a 
special joint meeting with the Planning Commission on Thursday, January 25th.   

VIII:  Board, Committee, and Staff Reports: 
A. For the Public Works Department, Village Manager Hackenberg reported that water was 

way down from last year.  He stated this could have to do with Welch’s, if they shut down 
for a few weeks for the holidays.  Hackenberg stated the leaves finished being picked up 



this past Saturday.  Hackenberg stated Christmas decorations will come down as soon as 
weather allows, since we are expecting quite a bit of bad weather this week.  

B. Hackenberg reported that we have gotten two bids on the pickleball court construction 
thus far.  He is waiting on a couple more that can then be sent off to DNR for approval.  
Hackenberg stated we got another bill for the blight; Zoning Solutions is still working on 
a couple of the open cases.  Hackenberg and Police Chief Cordes have gone through how 
to enter blight on Silversmith. Hackenberg also stated that DPW employees will be going 
around entering street signs and trash cans and other items to help with getting this 
software off the ground. Hackenberg stated the utility extension on the north end of 
town was put out for bids yesterday, with a bid opening to come on February 9th in order 
to avoid the MDOT bidding.  The finishing touches are being placed on the Reed’s Corner 
plans, Kalin is working on some quotes to see where we are at budget wise with some of 
it.  Hackenberg stated they are designing a vault for the middle that will be covered up. 
Hackenberg stated Verizon is updating their antennae’s, that is what the crane is in town.  
He also stated Verizon would like to run new fiber optic conduit from Modern Well to 
the tower, which is being reviewed.  Hackenberg stated that we received the Insurance 
Valuation Report of Tangible Property Assets.   

C. Clerk Rathbun Reported W2s are out.   
D. Cordes Reported that the month of December was an average month for the Police 

Department.  He stated he would like to see more Part time officers cover some.  J Largen 
had one notable incident on New Year’s Eve, and was injured. He stated officer Largen 
did a great job subduing bringing the person in.  Cordes stated that 29 hours were spent 
on radar.  He stated officer Edwards and officer Largen both attended legal update 
trainings.  Chief Cordes would like to see every officer, himself included, attend those 
this year.  He stated that he has a few chief trainings coming up.  Cordes stated going 
forward, Jeff Mack is still going to continue to come in and help out where needed.  
Cordes reported he has a list of things to update for the police departments.  Cordes 
stated that he has a friend who is a member of the KVCC academy and they have been 
in communications, so she will let him know if any free agents come in and are available 
for hire. Chief Cordes has also started a Standard Operating Procedure manual to make 
transition easier for the next person who comes into his position.  

E. Peterson reported Planning Commission met and they are working their way through 
zoning ordinances. She stated it was a good meeting with lots of input.   

F. G. Dudek reported that the DDA did not meet.  
G. E. Dudek reported that the Fireboard met and it was a slow month.  
H. Rathbun reported that the Library Board met and the hours have been updated to 

9:30AM-6PM M-W, 9:30AM-5PM on Friday, and 9:30AM-2:00PM on Saturdays.  The 
library will still be closed Thursdays and Sundays.  The library is also in the process of 
ordering a new book drop for the back of the building before construction starts on Main 
street in April. Rathbun reported the skylights are finished in the library, and it is looking 
great. 



VIII. Council Comments:   

IX. Adjournment:  Turner moved, with support from Tanis to adjourn the Village Council Meeting at 
7:53 p.m. Next regular council meeting to take place on February 13th, 2024.  

 

Respectfully Submitted by,  

 

Brittany Rathbun  

Village Clerk 



02
/0
2/
20

24
CH

EC
K
RE

GI
ST
ER

FO
R
VI
LL
AG

E
O
F
LA
W
TO

N
CH

EC
K
DA

TE
FR
O
M

01
/0
1/
20

24
01

/3
1/
20

24

Ch
ec
k
Da

te
Ba

nk
Ch

ec
k

Ap
p
Ve

nd
or

Ve
nd

or
Na

m
e

De
sc
rip

tio
n

Am
ou

nt

Ba
nk

GE
N
GE

NE
RA

LC
HE

CK
IN
G

01
/0
3/
20

24
GE

N
68

92
AP

03
0

AD
AM

S
HA

RD
W
AR

E
CO

NS
O
LI
DA

TE
D
BI
LL

66
9.
87

01
/0
3/
20

24
GE

N
68

93
AP

89
3

BE
N
W
.J
O
HN

SO
N

CL
EA

NI
NG

X4
FO

R
DE

C2
3

38
0.
00

01
/0
3/
20

24
GE

N
68

94
AP

96
4

CL
AR

K
TE
CH

NI
CA

LS
ER

VI
CE

S
VO

L2
02

3
SU

PP
O
RT

DE
CE

M
BE

R
67

7.
50

01
/0
3/
20

24
GE

N
68

95
AP

80
0

CO
M
CA

ST
IN
TE
RN

ET
20

0
JA
M
ES

AC
CT

#8
52

9
11

33
2
0

1,
01

0.
10

01
/0
3/
20

24
GE

N
68

96
AP

02
6

CO
NS

UM
ER

S
EN

ER
GY

HE
AT

FO
R
62

5
W

UN
IO
N
ST

AC
CT

NO
10

00
07

1
29

7.
53

01
/0
3/
20

24
GE

N
68

97
AP

02
7

FR
O
NT

IE
R

TE
LE
PH

O
NE

AN
D
IN
TE
RN

ET
FO

R
DP

W
AN

D
W
W
TP

25
5.
70

01
/0
3/
20

24
GE

N
68

98
AP

M
IS
C

GR
EG

O
RY

CO
RD

ES
M
IC
HI
GA

N
AS

SO
CI
AT

IO
N
O
F
CH

IE
FS

PO
LI
CE

;2
13

6.
16

01
/0
3/
20

24
GE

N
68

99
AP

93
0

HS
FL
EE
T
SE
RV

IC
ES

LL
C

M
AI
NT

EN
AN

CE
O
N
VE

HI
CL
E
20

23
FO

RD
F3
50

4,
49

5.
40

01
/0
3/
20

24
GE

N
69

00
AP

01
7

IN
DI
AN

A
M
IC
HI
GA

N
PO

W
ER

CO
.

AC
CT

#0
46

21
6
17

6
0
6

11
9
N
M
AI
N
ST
,R

18
7.
75

01
/0
3/
20

24
GE

N
69

01
AP

11
03

KO
NI
CA

M
IN
O
LT
A
BU

SI
NE

SS
SO

LU
TI
O
NS

CO
PI
ER

M
O
NT

HL
Y
IN
VO

IC
E
PE
R
CO

NT
RA

CT
#

48
1.
54

01
/0
3/
20

24
GE

N
69

02
AP

10
7

LA
W
SO

N
O
IL
CO

M
PA

NY
PD

F
2,
00

4.
81

01
/0
3/
20

24
GE

N
69

03
AP

75
8

M
AN

NI
NG

EN
TE
RP

RI
SE
S,
IN
C

FO
UR

PP
CS

RO
LL
ED

GA
LV
AN

IZ
ED

24
"X

18
"

15
3.
00

01
/0
3/
20

24
GE

N
69

04
AP

55
1

O
DP

BU
SI
NE

SS
SO

LU
TI
O
NS

BU
SI
NE

SS
CA

RD
S,
RE

PO
RT

S
CO

VE
R

49
.9
8

01
/0
3/
20

24
GE

N
69

05
AP

17
2

PE
ER

LE
SS

M
ID
W
ES
T,
IN
C.

W
EL
L#

4
PU

M
P
RE

PA
IR

&
CL
EA

NI
NG

34
,8
60

.0
0

01
/0
3/
20

24
GE

N
69

06
AP

00
9

RE
PU

BL
IC

SE
RV

IC
ES

O
F

W
AS

TE
RE

M
O
VA

L
63

3.
67

01
/0
3/
20

24
GE

N
69

07
AP

10
68

SA
FE
BU

IL
T

11
4
N
M
AI
N
ST
,K
ID
S
DR

EA
M
,7
90

N
NU

RS
ER

Y
74

6.
70

01
/0
3/
20

24
GE

N
69

08
AP

36
6

SC
O
TT

HI
TC

HC
O
CK

HA
ND

CU
FF

CA
SE

20
.0
0

01
/0
3/
20

24
GE

N
69

09
AP

12
6

ST
EE
NS

M
A
LA
W
N
&
PO

W
ER

EQ
UI
P.

O
IL
,B

AC
KP

AC
K
BL
O
W
ER

,
12

4.
44

01
/0
3/
20

24
GE

N
69

10
AP

00
7

TH
E
CL
O
TH

ES
BA

SK
ET

DR
Y
CL
EA

NI
NG

38
1.
25

01
/0
3/
20

24
GE

N
69

11
AP

04
7

W
IG
HT

M
AN

PR
O
JE
CT

22
40

09
GE

NE
RA

LE
NG

IN
EE
RI
NG

2,
02

1.
32

01
/0
5/
20

24
GE

N
68

91
PR

60
RO

W
LI
SO

N,
ER

IC
In
clu

de
d
in
Pa
yr
ol
lT
ot
al

2,
71

1.
81

01
/1
2/
20

24
GE

N
69

12
AP

05
6

BL
O
O
M
IN
GD

AL
E
CO

M
M
UN

IC
AT

IO
NS

TE
LE
PH

O
NE

FO
R
AC

CT
NO

00
32

51
5
9

37
8.
42

01
/1
2/
20

24
GE

N
69

13
AP

31
2

BR
O
NS

O
N
HE

AL
TH

CA
RE

GR
O
UP

DR
UG

SC
RE

EN
FO

R
GR

EG
O
RY

CO
RD

ES
12

4.
00

01
/1
2/
20

24
GE

N
69

14
AP

80
0

CO
M
CA

ST
IN
TE
RN

ET
KI
DS

DR
EA

M
PA

RK
AC

CT
#8
52

9
11

38
9.
41

01
/1
2/
20

24
GE

N
69

15
AP

02
6

CO
NS

UM
ER

S
EN

ER
GY

HE
AT

FO
R
AD

DR
ES
S
12

5
M
AI
N
ST

AC
CT

NO
10

0
62

0.
89

01
/1
2/
20

24
GE

N
69

16
AP

08
8

FI
SH

ER
AU

TO
PA

RT
S

FU
EL

TA
NK

CA
P

12
.9
6

01
/1
2/
20

24
GE

N
69

17
AP

08
9

HA
AS

SY
ST
EM

S,
IN
C.

Q
UA

RT
LY

AL
AR

M
M
O
NI
TO

RI
NG

PE
R
AG

RE
EM

EN
T
W

96
.0
0

01
/1
2/
20

24
GE

N
69

18
AP

93
0

HS
FL
EE
T
SE
RV

IC
ES

LL
C

M
AI
NT

EN
AN

CE
O
N
VE

HI
CL
E
FO

RD
20

20
2,
81

3.
79

01
/1
2/
20

24
GE

N
69

19
AP

01
7

IN
DI
AN

A
M
IC
HI
GA

N
PO

W
ER

CO
.

EL
EC

TR
IC

7,
38

6.
57

01
/1
2/
20

24
GE

N
69

20
AP

11
0

PU
RI
TY

CY
LI
ND

ER
GA

SE
S,
IN
C.

GA
S,
AC

ET
YL
EN

E
92

.0
1

01
/1
2/
20

24
GE

N
69

21
AP

M
IS
C

ST
AT

E
O
F
M
IC
HI
GA

N
CU

ST
O
M
ER

AC
CT

NO
:M

DO
T0
04

94
M

40
M
IL
L.

12
8,
00

0.
00

01
/1
2/
20

24
GE

N
69

22
AP

11
07

TE
CH

RA
DI
UM

IR
IS

AN
NU

AL
SE
RV

IC
E
FE
E

1,
49

0.
00

01
/1
2/
20

24
GE

N
69

23
AP

04
7

W
IG
HT

M
AN

PR
O
JE
CT

23
42

23
W
HI
TE

O
AK

IM
PR

O
VE

M
EN

TS
14

,3
61

.2
5

01
/1
2/
20

24
GE

N
69

24
AP

M
IS
C

W
IL
CO

X
NE

W
SP
AP

ER
S

DI
SP
LA
Y
LE
GA

LS
:3
X1

1
O
RD

05
33

0.
00

01
/1
8/
20

24
GE

N
69

27
AP

10
99

AM
AZ

O
N
CA

PI
TA

LS
ER

VI
CE

S,
IN
C

BO
O
KS

80
5.
61

01
/1
8/
20

24
GE

N
69

28
AP

15
5

AP
PL
IE
D
IN
NO

VA
TI
O
N

LI
BR

AR
Y
CO

NT
RA

CT
CN

35
99

01
;A

CC
T
NO

KZ
07

17
5.
92

01
/1
8/
20

24
GE

N
69

29
AP

10
4

BA
KE
R
&
TA

YL
O
R,

IN
C.

BO
O
KS

98
2.
62

01
/1
8/
20

24
GE

N
69

30
AP

05
6

BL
O
O
M
IN
GD

AL
E
CO

M
M
UN

IC
AT

IO
NS

PH
O
NE

LI
BR

AR
Y

AC
CT

NO
00

03
20

03
0

15
7.
94

01
/1
8/
20

24
GE

N
69

31
AP

10
1

CE
NG

AG
E
LE
AR

NI
NG

.
BO

O
KS

17
5.
43



01
/1
8/
20

24
GE

N
69

32
AP

96
4

CL
AR

K
TE
CH

NI
CA

LS
ER

VI
CE

S
LP
L2

02
4
SU

PP
O
RT

JA
NU

AR
Y

43
5.
00

01
/1
8/
20

24
GE

N
69

33
AP

26
4

PE
TT
Y
CA

SH
LA
W
TO

N
PU

BL
IC
LI
BR

AR
Y

DO
LL
AR

GE
NE

RA
L,
DO

LL
AR

TR
EE
,W

AL
M
AR

T,
M
E

69
.5
8

01
/1
8/
20

24
GE

N
69

34
AP

11
08

PI
XE
LV
IN
E

W
EB

SI
TE

ST
AR

T
PA

YM
EN

T
1,
28

7.
50

01
/1
8/
20

24
GE

N
69

35
AP

07
9

Q
UI
LL

CO
RP

O
RA

TI
O
N

CO
PY

PA
PE
R,

SW
EF
ER

RE
FI
LL
S,
LY
SO

L
35

7.
08

01
/1
9/
20

24
GE

N
69

25
PR

60
RO

W
LI
SO

N,
ER

IC
In
clu

de
d
in
Pa
yr
ol
lT
ot
al

2,
41

4.
31

01
/1
9/
20

24
GE

N
69

26
PR

TE
AM

ST
ER

S
TE
AM

ST
ER

S
LO

CA
L#

21
4

In
clu

de
d
in
Pa
yr
ol
lT
ot
al

16
7.
00

01
/2
9/
20

24
GE

N
69

36
AP

80
0

CO
M
CA

ST
IN
TE
RN

ET
62

5
W

UN
IO
N
ST

AC
CT

#8
52

9
11

1,
01

8.
18

01
/2
9/
20

24
GE

N
69

37
AP

10
72

CO
UR

IE
R
LE
AD

ER
&
FL
AS

HE
S

LE
GA

LS
:P

AR
KI
NG

O
F
VE

HI
CL
ES

AN
D
TR

AI
LE
RS

33
0.
00

01
/2
9/
20

24
GE

N
69

38
AP

90
1

DA
LE

W
.H

UB
BA

RD
,I
NC

CL
O
SE
D
CI
RC

UI
T
TE
LE
VI
SI
NG

PI
PE

IN
SP
EC

TI
O

45
7.
25

01
/2
9/
20

24
GE

N
69

39
AP

01
7

IN
DI
AN

A
M
IC
HI
GA

N
PO

W
ER

CO
.

EL
EC

TR
IC

ST
RE

ET
LI
GH

TI
NG

35
9.
15

01
/2
9/
20

24
GE

N
69

40
AP

11
03

KO
NI
CA

M
IN
O
LT
A
BU

SI
NE

SS
SO

LU
TI
O
NS

CO
PI
ER

M
O
NT

HL
Y
IN
VO

IC
E
PE
R
CO

NT
RA

CT
#

48
1.
54

01
/2
9/
20

24
GE

N
69

41
AP

06
4

NY
E
UN

IF
O
RM

CO
M
PA

NY
CH

IE
F
CO

RD
ES

55
0.
89

01
/2
9/
20

24
GE

N
69

42
AP

55
1

O
FF
IC
E
DE

PO
T

W
2
FO

RM
S;
SH

AR
PI
E
GE

LP
EN

S.
EX
PA

ND
IN
G
LE

84
.3
6

01
/2
9/
20

24
GE

N
69

43
AP

06
8

PA
W

PA
W

RE
NT

AL
S

M
AN

LI
FT

51
'B
IL
JA
X

27
5.
00

01
/2
9/
20

24
GE

N
69

44
AP

10
34

PR
IO
RI
TY

HE
AL
TH

IN
SU

RA
NC

E
GR

O
UP

ID
79

48
24

5,
32

8.
44

01
/2
9/
20

24
GE

N
69

45
AP

10
32

PR
O
GR

ES
SI
VE

AE
PR

O
JE
CT

:9
00

50
00

4.
0
RE

ID
S
CO

RN
ER

23
,5
17

.5
0

01
/2
9/
20

24
GE

N
69

46
AP

M
IS
C

SO
UT

HW
ES
T
M
IC
H
CI
TY

M
AN

AG
ER

S
AS

SO
CI

M
EM

BE
RS
HI
P
DU

ES
FO

R
SW

M
CI
TY

M
AN

AG
ER

AS
S

10
0.
00

01
/2
9/
20

24
GE

N
69

47
AP

M
IS
C

ST
AT

E
O
F
M
IC
HI
GA

N
CU

ST
O
M
ER

AC
CT

NO
:M

DO
T0
04

94
M

40
M
IL
L.

1,
11

8.
53

01
/2
9/
20

24
GE

N
69

48
AP

68
5

VE
RI
ZO

N
W
IR
EL
ES
S

M
O
BI
LE

PH
O
NE

|
TA

BL
ET
S

35
8.
49

01
/2
9/
20

24
GE

N
69

49
AP

08
3

VI
LL
AG

E
O
F
PA

W
PA

W
W
AT

ER
LA
B
AN

AL
YS
IS

15
0.
00

01
/0
5/
20

24
GE

N
PR

Pa
yr
ol
lT
ot
al

35
,0
98

.2
0

01
/1
9/
20

24
GE

N
PR

Pa
yr
ol
lT
ot
al

39
,4
97

.9
5

To
ta
lo
f1

09
Di
sb
ur
se
m
en

ts
:

31
8,
85

4.
18



Hi, Brittany.  I’m sorry to cut this timing so close.  

               I think the opinion of the Michigan Attorney General is clear, and it is correct.  The Open 
Meetings Act cannot be interpreted and implemented without regard to other requirements such as the 
Americans with Disabilities Act. Thus, while the OMA essentially prohibits a public official from 
attending a meeting of a public body in a virtual manner, unless the public official is unable to attend in 
person because of military duty, that does not eliminate the ability of a public official to claim that the 
public official is entitled to accommodation under the ADA as a person with a disability.  The ADA 
defines a person with a disability as one with a physical or mental impairment that substantially limits 
one or more major life activities, or has a record of such an impairment, or is regarded as having such an 
impairment.  

               There have been cases holding a person with a broken limb may be considered as disabled for 
the period of time the person is recovering and is unable to perform one or more major life activities, 
such as walking into a meeting room and sitting for the duration of a public meeting. Thus, it certainly is
possible that a person with a broken back, and who I assume is completely immobile for a period of 
time, would qualify as a person with a disability, at least for the period of time the person is recovering 
from the broken back and is immobile and therefore unable to attend meetings of the public body of 
which the person is a member.

               Obviously, I don’t know the details of the physical condition of the public official in 
question.  However, if I have properly assumed what that condition is, as I have described above, then I 
believe it is possible that the Village could follow the opinion of the Michigan Attorney General and 
allow the public official to attend meetings of a public body remotely, because of the rights the public 
official has per the ADA, regardless of the language in the OMA.  

               Please advise if you have further questions or comments.  

Ronald A. Bultje Member



2/4/87  amend.for  11/8/23 1 

DA 
AMENDMENT TO CONTRACT 22-5219  Control Section  ST 80111;  GF19 

80111; TAU 80111 
Job Number   200641CON; 200641PE; 

213171CON 
Federal Project 22A1005; 22A1034 
Contract No.  23-5499 

THIS AMENDATORY CONTRACT is made by and between the MICHIGAN 
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION, hereinafter referred to as the "DEPARTMENT"; 
and the VILLAGE OF LAWTON, a Michigan municipal corporation, hereinafter referred to as 
the “VILLAGE”; for the purpose of fixing the rights and obligations of the parties in agreeing to 
this Amendment to CONTRACT #22-5219. 

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, the parties to the Amendment have heretofore, by a Contract executed 
February 1, 2023, hereinafter referred to as "CONTRACT 22-5219" provided for the 
construction and financing of that which is hereinafter referred to as the "PROJECT" and is 
described as follows: 

PART A – J.N. 200641 FEDERAL, STATE & VILLAGE PARTICIPATION 
Storm sewer work along Union Street from Walker Street to the Highway M-40 
right of way, including excavation, aggregate base, erosion control, drainage 
structure, hot mix asphalt paving, and sewer video taping work; together with 
necessary related work, located within the corporate limits of the VILLAGE; and 

PART B – J.N. 200641 100% VILLAGE PARTICIPATION 
Watermain, sanitary sewer, and streetscaping work along Highway M-40 from 
Morrill Street to approximately 300 feet north of White Oak Street, including 
concrete curb and gutter, videotaping sewer, drainage structure, hot mix asphalt 
paving, sidewalk, decorative concrete surface, tree and plant installation, planter 
pot installation, bench installation, bike rack installation, decorative street 
lighting, turf establishment, irrigation system installation, permanent pavement 
marking, fire hydrant,  and gate valve and box installation work; together with 
necessary related work, located within the corporate limits of the VILLAGE; and  

PART C – J.N. 213171 FEDERAL AND VILLAGE PARTICIPATIONU 
Sidewalk and decorative street lighting, along Highway M-40 from Fourth Street 
to East First Street; together with necessary related work, located within the 
corporate limits of the VILLAGE; and  



2/4/87  amend.for  11/8/23 2 

WHEREAS, the federal funding for Job Number 213171CON is capped and the 
CONTRACT 22-5219 requires an amendment to establish the capped amount and include 
provision for the future maintenance of existing sidewalk within the VILLAGE limits; and 

WHEREAS, the DEPARTMENT and the VILLAGE having appropriate authority desire 
to amend CONTRACT 22-5219 to provide for the capped funding of the PART C portion of the 
PROJECT COST and the future maintenance of existing sidewalk. 

NOW, THEREFORE, it is hereby agreed by and between the parties hereto that: 

1. Section 7 of CONTRACT 22-5219 is revised to read as follows: 

The PART A and C portions of the PROJECT COST shall be met in part by 
contributions from agencies of the Federal Government.  Federal Transportation 
Alternatives Funds shall be applied to the eligible items of the PART C portion of 
the PROJECT COST up to the lesser of: (1) $236,700, or (2) an amount such that 
56.53 percent, the normal Federal participation ratio for such funds, is not 
exceeded at the time of the award of the construction contract. The balance of the 
PART A, B, and C portions of the PROJECT COST, after deduction of Federal 
Funds, shall be charged to and paid by the DEPARTMENT and the VILLAGE in 
the following proportions and in the manner and at the times hereinafter set forth: 

                                PART A      PART B PART C 
DEPARTMENT -   8%  0%  0% 
VILLAGE -    92%  100%  100% 

The PROJECT COST and the respective shares of the parties, after Federal-aid, is 
estimated to be as follows: 

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 

COST
FED 
AID

BALANCE 
AFTER 

FED AID
DEPT’S 
SHARE

VILLAGE’S 
SHARE

PART A $ 863,300 $706,600 $ 156,700 $12,500 $ 144,200
PART B $1,769,000 $           0 $1,769,000 $         0 $1,769,000
PART C $   418,800 $236,700 $   182,100 $         0 $   182,100
TOTAL $3,051,100 $943,300 $2,107,800 $12,500 $2,095,300

The PE costs for the PARTS A and B portions of the PROJECT COST will be 
apportioned in the same ratio as the actual construction award and the CE costs 
for the PARTS A, B, and C portions of the PROJECT COST will be apportioned 
in the same ratio as the actual direct construction costs. 



2/4/87  amend.for  11/8/23 3

2. Section 10 of CONTRACT 22-5219 is revised to read as follows: 

Upon completion of the PROJECT and the  sidewalk constructed  along Highway
M-40 from White Oak Street approximately 200 feet north of West Second Street,
the VILLAGE shall accept the facilities constructed as built to specifications
within the construction  contract documents. It is understood that the VILLAGE
shall own the facilities and shall operate and maintain the facilities and the
existing  sidewalk within the VILLAGE limits in accordance with  all applicable
Federal and State laws and regulations, including, but not limited to, Title II of the
Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA), 42 USC 12131 et seq., and its associated
regulations and standards, and  DEPARTMENT  Road and Bridge Standard Plans
and the Standard Specifications for Construction, at no cost to the
DEPARTMENT.  The  maintenance for  the decorative street lighting work shall
include, but not be limited to, replacement of lights and poles, as needed. All
expenses for electrical service and maintenance of the PROJECT shall be the
responsibility of the VILLAGE.

3. Except as amended by the provisions herein, all of the provisions, covenants, and 
obligations of the parties contained in CONTRACT 22-5219 shall remain in full force and effect. 

4. The VILLAGE waives any and all claims it has or may have against the 
DEPARTMENT which arise out of the need to amend CONTRACT 22-5219. 



2/4/87  amend.for  11/8/23 4

5. This Amendatory contract shall become binding on the parties hereto and of full 
force and effect upon the signing thereof by the duly authorized officials for the parties hereto; 
upon the adoption of the necessary resolution approving said contract and authorizing the 
signatures thereto of the respective officials of the VILLAGE, a certified copy of which 
resolution shall be attached to this contract. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this contract to be executed as 
written below. 

VILLAGE OF LAWTON  MICHIGAN DEPARTMENT 
OF TRANSPORTATION 

By__________________________      
  Title:                            

By_________________________
for  Department Director MDOT

By__________________________ 
  Title: 



1 
 

 VILLAGE OF LAWTON 
COUNTY OF VAN BUREN 

STATE OF MICHIGAN 
 

RESOLUTION 01-2024 

A RESOLUTION TO AMEND CONTRACT 22-5219 BETWEEN  
THE VILLAGE OF LAWTON AND MDOT 

At a regular meeting of the Lawton Village Council, held at Lawton Village Hall –125 S Main 
Street in Lawton, Michigan, on this 13th day of February 2024 at 7:00p.m.  

 PRESENT:  

 ABSENT:  

The following Resolution was offered by Councilperson ______________________ and supported 
by Councilperson_____________________.   

RESOLUTION  

WHEREAS, the Village of Lawton Council Members are organized and existing under the State 
of Michigan; and  

WHEREAS, the Village Manager serves as the chief administrative and financial officer of the 
Village of Lawton and is the official signatory on all accounts and transactions; and  

 WHEREAS, the Village of Lawton Council Members and Village Clerk certify that this resolution 
is duly adopted at a public meeting on February 13, 2024 at which a quorum of the public body was 
present; and  

WHEREAS, the parties to the Amendment have heretofore, by a Contract executed February 1, 
2023, hereinafter referred to as “Contract 22-5219” provided for construction and financing of that 
which is hereinafter referred to as the “Project” and is described as follows:  

 PART A – J.N. 200641 FEDERAL, STATE & VILLAGE PARTICIPATION 
Storm sewer work along Union Street from Walker Street to the Highway M-40 
right of way, including excavation, aggregate base, erosion control, drainage 
structure, hot mix asphalt paving, and sewer videotaping work; together with 
necessary related work, located within the corporate limits of the VILLAGE; and 

PART B – J.N. 200641 100% VILLAGE PARTICIPATION 
Watermain, sanitary sewer, and streetscaping work along Highway M-40 from 
Morrill Street to approximately 300 feet north of White Oak Street, including 
concrete curb and gutter, videotaping sewer, drainage structure, hot mix asphalt 
paving, sidewalk, decorative concrete surface, tree and plant installation, planter 
pot installation, bench installation, bike rack installation, decorative street 
lighting, turf establishment, irrigation system installation, permanent pavement 
marking, fire hydrant, and gate valve and box installation work; together with 
necessary related work, located within the corporate limits of the VILLAGE; and 

PART C – J.N. 213171 FEDERAL AND VILLAGE PARTICIPATION 
Sidewalk and decorative street lighting, along Highway M-40 from Fourth Street 
to East First Street; together with necessary related work, located within the 



2 
 

corporate limits of the VILLAGE; and 

WHEREAS, the federal funding for JOB NUMBER 213171CON is capped and the CONTRACT 
22-5219 requires an amendment to establish the capped amount and include provision for the future 
maintenance of existing sidewalk within the VILLAGE limits; and  

WHEREAS, the DEPARTMENT and the VILLAGE having appropriate authority desire to amend 
CONTRACT 22-5219 to provide for the capped funding of the PART C portion of the PROJCET 
COST and the future maintenance of existing sidewalk.  

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED,  

1. Section 7 of CONTRACT 22-5219 is revised to read as follows:  

The PART A and C portions of the PROJECT COST shall be met in part by 
contributions from agencies of the Federal Government.  Federal Transportation 
Alternatives Funds shall be applied to the eligible items of the PART C portion of 
the PROJECT COST up to the lesser of: (1) $236,700, OR (2) an amount such that 
56.53 percent, the normal Federal participation ratio for such funds, is not exceeded 
at the time of the award of the construction contract. The balance of the PART A, 
B, and C portions of the PROJECT COST, after deduction of Federal Funds, shall 
be charged to and paid by the DEPARTMENT and the VILLAGE in the following 
proportions and in the manner and at the times hereinafter set forth:  

                                              PART A PART B  PART C 
                                              DEPARTMENT - 8%   0%   0% 
                                              VILLAGE -   92%   100%   100% 

The PROJECT COST and the respective shares of the parties, after Federal-aid, is 
estimated as follows:

 ESTIMATED 
COST 

PART A 
PART B 
PART C 
TOTAL 

 

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 

COST 
$863,300 

$1,769,000 
$418,800 

$3,051,100 

FED AID 
 
 

$706,600 
$0 

$236,700 
$943,300 

 
 

BALANCE 
AFTER FED 

AID 
$156,700 

$1,769,000 
$182,100 

$2,107,800 

DEPT’S 
SHARE 

 
$12,500 

$0 
$0 

$12,500 

VILLAGE’S 
SHARE 

 
$144,200 
$1,769,000 
$182,100 
$2,095,30

 
The PE costs for the PARTS A and B portions of the PROJECT COST will be apportioned 
in the same ratio as the actual direct construction costs.  
 
2. Section 10 of CONTRACT 22-5219 is revised to read as follows:  

 
Upon completion of the PROJECT and the sidewalk constructed along Highway M-40 
from the White Oak Street approximately 200 feet north of West Second Street, the 



3 
 

VILLAGE shall accept the facilities constructed as built to specifications within the 
construction contract documents.  It is understood that the VILLAGE shall own the 
facilities and shall operate and maintain the facilities and the existing sidewalk within the 
VILLAGE limits in accordance with all applicable Federal and State Laws and 
regulations, including, but not limited to, Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act 
(ADA), 42 USC 12131 et seq., and its associated regulations and standards, and 
DEPARTMENT Road and Bridge Standard Plans and the Standard Specifications for 
Construction, at no cost to the DEPARTMENT.  The maintenance for the decorative street 
lighting work shall include, but not be limited to, replacement of lights and poles, as 
needed.  All expenses for electrical service and maintenance of the PROJECT shall be the 
responsibility of the VILLAGE.   
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that except as amended by the provisions herein, all of the 
provisions, covenants, and obligations of the parties contained in CONTRACT 22-5219 shall remain 
in full force and effect.   
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the amendatory contract shall become binding on the 
parties hereto and of full force and effect upon the signing thereof by the duly authorized officials 
for the parties hereto; which shall be attached to this resolution.  
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Village of Lawton Council hereby authorize Todd 
Hackenberg, Village Manager, and Brittany Rathbun, Village Clerk to be the authorized signers and 
perform any and all authorizations and responsibilities in relation to the Michigan Department of 
Transportation Contract #22-5219, and any amendments therein.  
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this resolution shall remain in full effect until revoked 
by the public body, and supersedes and revokes all previously adopted resolutions on this subject 
matter and this resolution is not intended to circumvent statutory authority of elected officials.  

 
 THIS RESOLUTION is hereby approved by a roll call vote:  
 
YEAS:  

NAYS:  

ABSTAIN:  

ABSENT:  

 
BY:_______________________________   BY:____________________________ 
 Joshua Appleby, Village President    Brittany Rathbun, Village Clerk 
 

 
 



4 
 

CERTIFICATION 
I, Brittany Rathbun, the duly appointed Clerk of the Village of Lawton, do hereby certify that the 
foregoing is a true and complete copy of a Resolution adopted by the Lawton Village Council at a 
regular meeting held on Tuesday, February 13, 2024 in compliance with the Open Meetings Act, 
Act No. 267 of the Public Acts of Michigan, 1976, as amended, the minutes of the meeting were 
kept and will be or have been made available as required by said Act.  
 
       THE VILLAGE OF LAWTON  
        
       BY:_________________________________ 
        Brittany Rathbun, Village Clerk  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  























\\KZOOFILE\Projects\Kalamazoo\234079 Lawton - Water & Sewer Extension\G) CA\G10 Bid Docs\Bidding - Award Recommendation.docx

February 9, 2024

Village of Lawton
125 S. Main Street
Lawton, MI 49065

Attention: Todd Hackenberg, Village Manager

RE: NORTH MAIN STREET UTILITY EXTENSION PROJECT
RECOMMENDATION FOR AWARD

Dear Mr. Hackenberg:

I have tabulated the bids for the above-mentioned project and have found Kalin Construction Co. Inc. to be the 
low responsive bidder in the amount of $999,291.00. It is our recommendation the Village of Lawton award this 
contract to Kalin Construction Co. Inc. in said amount.

In addition, Kalin Construction Co. Inc. has provided all required bid documents per the contract requirements. 
Please find the bid tabulation for this project enclosed for your records.

If you have any questions concerning this matter, please feel free to call.

Very truly yours,

Paul Harvey, P.E., Project Manager
pharvey@gowightman.com 





Lawton Police Department
P.O. Box 117

125 S. Main St.  
Lawton MI,  49065

(269) 624-2382
Fax (269) 624-1911

LAWTON POLICE DEPARTMENT – COUNCIL REPORT
January 2024 

Prepared by Chief Greg Cordes

Calls for Service/Complaints………………………65

Ordinance complaints…………………………………….0

Blight………………………………………………………………... 1            

Zone………………………………………………………………..….0

Traffic stops citations issued…………….………….5

Traffic stops verbal warning………………….……..7

Arrests…………………………………………………………..…..5

Accidents…………………………………………………….…….1

Parking citations…………………………..………………...0



 
 

Business contacts…………………………………….……25 
 
Citizen contacts……………………………………………30 
 
Officer Foot Patrol time…………………………….270 mins 
 
Assist other departments calls …………………..16 
 
 
HOURS WORKED:  Police:  Scheduled (Full-time)…741 hrs.    
                   Scheduled (Part-time)…….8 hrs.   
                   Overtime hours…………………8 hrs.  
                                           Vacation hours………………….0 hrs.                 
                   Sick leave hours……………….13 hrs. 
                                     
                                           Cross guard hours:                       52 hrs. 
      
 
 
NOTABLE INCIDENTS: 
 
Officers from Lawton PD have been experiencing a slight uptake in drug 
activity in the last month in Lawton with the cases being generated.  
Methamphetamine and ecstasy are two different drugs that Lawton 
Police has dealt with in the community.  These cases are pending lab 
analysis at the Michigan State Police Lab.  Charges will be sought after 
the results are returned to Lawton PD. 
 
ADDITIONAL: 
 
For the month of January, Lawton officers again spent hours on directed 
traffic patrol, specifically targeting speed violations and aggressive 
driving throughout the Village.  January proved to be a colder month 
with numerous snowy days or freezing rain, slowing traffic down.  The 
following are the streets that were targeted in January.  We are hoping 



 
 

the continued police presence on these streets will deter aggressive 
driving and speeding.  As winter progresses, I would expect less traffic 
and slower traffic, at least until spring. 
 
 20 mins………………...2nd St. and Nursery St. 
  15 mins…………..…….2nd St. and Cemetery 
   0 mins…………….... Nursery St. and Orchard 
 35 mins…………….….3rd  St. and Nursery St. 
549 mins………………Main St. and 3rd St. 
 80 mins………….…….Main St. and 4th St. 
   0 mins…………….… Main St. and 1st St. 
 30 mins……………... Main St. and 2nd. 
   0 mins………………. Ewing St. and Walker St. 
 140 mins………………72nd Ave and Nursery St. 
 105 mins……………… Blue Pride Drive 
 25 mins……………… White Oak St. and Walker St. 
90 mins………………. Main St. and White Oak St. 
20 mins…………………Nursery and Tracks 
95 mins…………….…..Main St. and Tracks 
  0 mins……………..…..3rd St. and Quincy 
  0 mins………….….….White Oak St. and 32nd St. 
70 mins…………………..3rd St. and Nursery St. 
40 mins………..……….Kids Dream 
30 mins…………..….….66th and Nursery St. 
30 mins…………………Main St. and James 
40 mins…………………Nursery and North St. 
 
Total radar time hours………….1424 mins 
 
      
Officers were also active during this month monitoring and attending 
sporting events at the Lawton Schools such as basketball games. 
 
 
 ASSIST LAWTON FIRE/EMS:   



 
 

     
Lawton PD assist medical/fire calls ……………………………….5 
 
 
TRAINING: 
 
Officers have been utilizing slower times in the winter doing in 
house/on-line training such as security awareness for LEIN access, 
Narcan training and sex trafficking training.  We have access to 
numerous on-line training portals to use during slower times that are 
free to the department. 
 
LAWTON SCHOOLS: 
 
On 1-18-2024 I met with staff, teachers and principals at the Lawton 
Elementary, Middle, and High School.  I briefly went over some of the 
safety and lock down protocols they have in place at each school.  I 
walked through each school and was given a personal tour of the High 
School by Mr. Waldron.  I met with students during my walk through, 
some familiar face and some I did not know.  It gave me a reminder how 
important this part of the job will be moving forward. 
 
On 1-30-2024 I met with Superintendent Ben Banfield and we discussed 
the future relationship between the Police Department and the schools.  
We also went through the new lock down boot system and discussed 
other ideas of increasing the security and safety of the students and staff 
at all three schools. 
 
On 1-31-2024 I met with Lockout Company, who is the company that 
installed the boots and lock down security systems at the Lawton 
Schools.  I gave them some suggestions on what I would like to see 
added to the system, the school and made sure that the phone for the 
on-duty officer and my cell phone will be added to the alert system.  In 
the event of a lock down situation, both phones will be notified by text 
message, increasing response time even more. 



 
 

 
 
THE PD MOVING FORWARD: 
 
Lawton PD needs new vehicles and the planning for those vehicles has 
started.  Lawton PD currently has a 2020 front line car and a 2013 back-
up car.  Both vehicles have over 100,000 miles and have been regulars for 
vehicle repairs at HS Fleet, costing the PD a lot of money in repairs. 
 
I met with Heath Seelye, owner of HS Fleet Services, and he provided an 
estimate time frame for when our new patrol car will have a VIN# and 
start being made.  We have also started the planning phase on how the 
car will be set-up inside and outside with what police equipment 
package.  I have made sure that the officers have a say in how the car is 
set-up and what works best for them.  At this point, we expect to take 
delivery of this car sometime in April.  
 
There are numerous issues as a police department that we have moving 
forward with vehicle purchases.   
 

1. The time frame to actually get a vehicle, which sometimes can be 6 
months to a year after ordered.   

2. With all of the government changes to safety in vehicles, the 
dimensions of the interior and exterior of these vehicles change 
about every 3 to 4 years on each model.  This can be an issue when 
attempting to re-use interior equipment, cages, center counsels, 
etc. from the old vehicles to the new vehicles.  The interior and 
exterior of the vehicles can cost over $10,000 to outfit, even with 
just the basics.  
 

As soon as we know that the vehicle is being built, we will order the 
interior/exterior patrol package equipment for the new car.  I was told 
that the 2025 Ford Explorer Police Packages will not be changing.  The 
ultimate goal would be to re-use our 2020 patrol car equipment on a 



 
 

future vehicle purchase to save the village thousands of dollars moving 
forward. 
   
Pepper spray and tasers:  I have updated all of the officer’s pepper 
spray and we have received new taser cartridges for the department 
taser guns.   
 
Bulletproof vests:  I have contacted On Duty Gear LLC and they sent a 
sales rep to Lawton PD to size 3 officers for new vests and 2 new 
carriers for those vests.  This will update and outfit 2 full-time officers 
and 1 part-time officer.  Currently their bullet proof vests are expired.   
 
I applied for a federal grant through the bulletproof partnership at the 
U.S. Department of Justice for vests in the future.  This would require 
Lawton PD to contribute 50% and the federal government contribute 
50%.  This will keep the vests updated on a rotation for ½ the cost.  I do 
not for see any issues with us being awarded this grant.   
 
DAR:  We have changed the officer’s daily activity reports (DARS) 
moving forward to make them more user friendly, accurate and less time 
to complete for the officers.  In the new DARS, the exact information 
that I need for my reports is outlined, along with the information that 
we may need down the road in the event of an enquiry.  The added items 
have been removed to simplify the DAR.  
 
School lock down:  On 1-24-2024 I attended a lock down drill at the 
Lawton Elementary with the new emergency lock down door boots and 
electronic notification system.  I walked through the school during the 
drill with Principal Olsen and staff to evaluate the students and staff on 
their abilities to perform during the drill.  The system worked well and 
staff and students did exactly what they were taught to do.  
 
Narcan:  I have contacted Southwest Michigan Behavioral Health and I 
have started the process of getting officers trained and supplied with 
Narcan for the patrol cars for two reasons.   



 
 

1. To better serve the community in the case of an over dose of a 
citizen. 

2. In case one of the officers has an exposure to Fentanyl or another 
kind of drug during an investigation.  The Narcan could save their 
life. 

This will require the officers to be trained (on-line) and some continued 
education to carry the Narcan and administer it.  I expect to have the 
Narcan in the cars within a week or two. 
 
Police PO BOX: On 1-29-2024 Village Manager Hackenberg an I 
decided to cancel the Police PO Box and have the PD use the Village’s 
PO Box moving forward.  It did not make any sense for the Police to 
have their own PO Box and will save the PD about $140 per year.  I had 
the mail forwarded until we use up the business cards with the old PO 
Box address on them. 
 
Police policy updates: I have started working on updating the 
department’s policies.  I have conferred with other agencies to include 
Schoolcraft PD and Kalamazoo Department of Public Safety.  I also have 
copies of the policies from Portage PD and other departments.  
Currently I am reviewing the polices that Lawton PD has and trying to 
get a feeling for how many policies we are missing and what needs to be 
added.  Officer Hitchcock has been assisting me with this and we will 
continue to work on this project together.  I expect this process could 
take some time.  On 1-16-2023 I met with the Schoolcraft PD Chief and 
took a tour of their operation and how they do things.  I received polices 
from him, walked through their evidence intake area, and much more.  
Their facility is new and updated.  We discussed the challenges of hiring 
and different ideas on how to retain employees and find new ones. 
 
Personal note: 
 
On a personal note, I now have had a month or more working with each 
full-time officer and some of the part-time officers.  I feel we are coming 
together as a team and working together with the same goal, serving our 



community.  I have made my expectations clear to all the officers and 
the officers have met those expectations and often exceeded them.  Each 
officer provides a different valuable piece to the equation, and  I am 
proud of each officer in the department and the jobs they are doing 
daily.  

Respectfully, 

Chief Greg Cordes 
Lawton PD  

““Officers control 100% of their integrity, their professionalism and how well they do their job”  



Village of Lawton 
SPECIAL MEETING 

JOINT MEETING OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION & VILLAGE COUNCIL  
125 S. MAIN, LAWTON MI 49065 269.624.6407 

Thursday, January 25, 2024 - 6:00 PM  
 

MINUTES 
 

1. Call to Order:  P. Rathbun called the meeting to order at 6:05 p.m. 
 
2. Roll Call:  Present: P. Rathbun, P. Chmiel, M. Dudek, C. Knapp. J. Appleby, G. Dudek, E. Dudek, and R. Tannis Absent: J. 

Peterson, B. Allen, N. Smith, R. Turner.  Also Present: T. Hackenberg, M. Leonard, L. Ransler (Imus), Tyler August with 
MSU Extension, and Suzanne Schulz with Progressive AE.  

 
3. Approval of Agenda: M. Dudek, supported by P.Chmiel, made a motion to approve the Planning Commission Agenda 

for January 25, 2024, as presented. Motion approved by unanimous voice vote. 
 

4. Public Comment / Communications: Tyler August with MSU Extension handed out a flyer with information on the 
Citizen Planner Program. The program includes land use education and training to locally appointed and elected 
planning officials throughout Michigan. The program also teaches the fundamentals on roles, responsibilities and 
best practices for planning and zoning in Michigan. 

 
5. New Business: 

 
A. Zoning Ordinance Revisions:  

 
Suzanne Schultz, a representative from Progressive AE, initiated the discussion by elucidating the 
reorganization of articles aimed at enhancing coherence within the committee. Delving into the agenda, the 
committee meticulously dissected each non-conformity, shedding light on a few identified grammatical 
errors.  
 
Due to a few scheduling conflicts, a decision was reached, leading to the cancellation of February's regular 
planning commission meeting. However, with the approval of the planning commission committee, a special 
joint meeting with the council was scheduled for February 20, 2024, at 6 pm.  

 
6. Planning Commissioner Comments: J. Peterson suggested to continue revisions of the zoning ordinance at a later 

date due to time. Committee decided as a whole to meet again, with Council present, on January 25, 2024 at 6pm. 
 

7. Adjournment: M. Dudek, supported by P. Chmiel, made a motion to adjourn the meeting at 8:32pm. Motion 
approved.  

 
 
Respectfully Submitted,  
Melina Leonard 
 
 



LAWTON FIRE DEPARTMENT 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

February 01, 2024 Regular Meeting Minutes 
CALL TO ORDER 

Chairman Mayne called the Regular Meeting of the Lawton Fire Department Board of Commissioners to 
order at 7:02 p.m.  
 

ROLL CALL 
Members present: Chairman Mayne, Vice chair Packer, Commissioners Cutting, Lawson, Bitely, and 
Dudek. Absent: None. Also Present: Fire Chief Cook and MFR Chief Baden. 
 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES – January 2024 Meeting 
Motion made by Packer, seconded by Dudek to approve the minutes of the January 2024 meeting.  Motion 
unanimously carried by voice vote. 
 

CITIZENS’ COMMENTS 
 None. 
 
FIRE CHIEF’S REPORT 
 Chief Cook presented the January 2024 Fire reports as submitted from the Van Buren County dispatch. 
 
QR CHIEF’S REPORT 
 Dave Baden presented the January 2024 MFR reports as submitted from the Van Buren County dispatch. 

 
OLD BUSINESS  

None. 
  
NEW BUSINESS 
 

Packer motioned, and Dudek seconded to schedule the 2024/25 budget hearing on March 07, 2024. On a 
roll call vote, motion unanimously carried.  
 
Dudek seconded a motion made by Packer to approve and sign the engagement letter from Siegfred 
Crandall for the 2023/24 audit. On a roll call vote, motion unanimously carried.  
 

 
DISBURSEMENTS – Totaling $16,294.26 

Bitely motioned, and Lawson seconded to approve disbursements totaling $16,294.26. On a roll call vote, 
motion unanimously carried.  

 
ADJOURNMENT 

There being no further business to come before the Board, Bitely supported a motion by Packer to 
adjourn. Motion unanimously carried by voice vote. Meeting adjourned at 7:39p.m. 

Next meeting date: February 01, 2024 

_____________________ 

Bruce T. Cutting, Secretary 



 Circulation Report for December 2023 

We had 500 visitors and checked out a total of in 1,486 materials. 

Adult Fiction      378       
Adult Non-Fiction     36 
Audio Books      4 
Children Easy Books     547 
Junior Fiction      187 
Junior Non-Fiction     10 
Large Print      199 
Periodicals      16 
Videos                  63 
Young Adult fiction     46 
VOX Books      0 
 Total      1,486 
 
Computer Usage     22 uses                
Michigan Overdrive Total Checkouts   26,340 
Michigan Overdrive Total Holds   12,173 
Michigan Overdrive Total Users   6,279 
New Items Processed     114 
Our Mel Items Received    76 
Our Mel Items Sent                80  
Lawton Overdrive Downloads    286 
Lawton Overdrive Holds     199 
New Library Members    9 
Total Library Members    2064 (working on removing old accounts) 
 
Lawton Website visited 2,855 last 30 days 
Facebook visited 2,082 last 30 days 
 
Book club: 15 
Craft night: 5 
Evening Story Time: 8 
Knitters: 17 
Mystery Club: 5 
Story time: 38 
White Oaks: 14 
Holiday Craft/Santa Night: 400 
 
Closed early on December 18th Weather. Closed for Ceiling Repair December 21st – December 30th, offered 
curbside service on 12/22, 12/26, 12/27, 12/29.  Closed for Christmas 12/23 and 12/25, Closed for New Year’s 
12/30 and 01/01/24.  
 
Respectfully Submitted, Lyn Tone, Director 



LAWTON VILLAGE LIBRARY BOARD 

Regularly scheduled monthly meeting 

Date: January 22nd, 2024 at 6:30 p.m. 

I. Call to Order 

 The meeting was called to order by Reid at: 6:25 p.m. 

 Members present:   Cornish, Kison, Reid, Troxell  

 Members excused: McArthur (via zoom), Rathbun 

 Staff Present:  Tone 

 Public Comment (3 minutes per speaker): None 

II. Secretary’s Report:  The minutes were accepted as presented.  

Cornish moved to accept the meeting minutes.  Second by Reid .   Motion carried 
 

III. Library Director’s Report – Usage Statistics 

A. Visitors:   500 
B. Materials checked out: 1,486  
C. Adult Fiction:  378 
D. Audio Books:  4 
E. Children Easy Books: 547 
F. Junior Fiction:  187 
G. Junior Non-fiction:  10 
H. Large Print:   199 
I. Non-fiction:   36 
J. Periodicals:   16 
K. Videos:   63 
L. Young Adult fiction:  46 
M. VOX books:   0 

Total: 1,486 
 

N. Computer usage:    22 
O. Michigan Overdrive total checkouts:  26,340 
P. Michigan Overdrive total holds:  12,173 
Q. Michigan Overdrive total users:  6,279 
R. New Books Processed:   114 
S. Our MEL items received:   76 



T. Our MEL items sent:   80 
U. Lawton Overdrive downloads:  286 
V. Lawton Overdrive holds:   199 
W. New Library Members:   9 
X. Total Library Members:   2,064 
Y. Lawton Website visited:   2,855 
Z. Facebook visited:    2,082 
AA. Special Programs: Book Club: 15, Craft Night: 5, Evening Storytime: 8, Knitters: 17, Mystery 

Club: 5, Story Time: 38, White Oaks: 14, Holiday Craft/Santa Night: 400. 
BB. Closed Early on December 18th due to Weather, Closed for Ceiling Repair, December 21st-

December 30th, offered curbside service on 12-22, 12-26, 12-27, 12-29.  Closed for Christmas 
12-23, 12-25, closed for New Year’s 12-30, 01-04-24. 

IV. Financial Report 

 A. The financial report was presented. The Library received a letter from Village for Auditing 
 Services, the Library portion for 2024/2025 will be $500.00. 

   Cornish moved to accept the financial report.  Second by Kison.  Motion carried. 
 

 B. The receipts and expenses were presented by Tone as follows: 

  Receipts:  $ 4,726.89 

  Expenses: $ 12,535.20     

  Reid moved to pay the bills.  Second by Kison.  Motion carried. 
 

V. Committee Reports 

 A. None 

VI. Communications: None 

VII:  Old Business: Roof inside and outside done.  Strategic Plan in progress. 

VIII:  New Business:  

1.  Outdoor Book Return purchase for back parking lot, waiting on Tone to get pricing.  Will table to 
February meeting to approve  purchase. 

2.  Proposed wage increase discussed, Policy Manual needs to be updated first, tabled for future 
meeting. 



3.  Tone will reach out to Joseph Bigelow for Tile Quote to replace carpet for inside front door. Will have 
prepared for next meeting. 

4.  Tone requested to purchase Office Jet Printer for office for patrons to print too from phone from 
Amazon.  Price is $69.99 plus ink. 

 

 

5.  Budget discussed, Tone will give proposed copy to Village, further discussion moved to next meeting.   

6.  Tone is working on patron accounts and collections will give update at next meeting.  Working with 
Unique on current accounts. 

7.  Tone is working on recovery items for month of February.  Fines will be removed if items returned in 
good condition. 

8.  Tone was accepted into Post Pandemic Program with State of Michigan, will pay for Tone to attend 
MLA and Small Rural Library conference in October. 

X. Adjournment – The meeting adjourned at 7:45 p.m. 

                      Reid moved to adjourn the meeting; second by Troxell.  

Next Meeting:  February 26th, 2024 at 6:30 p.m. 

 

      Respectfully submitted,  

      Lee Kison,  Board Trustee 

 

 

Reid moved to purchase Office Jet Printer from Amazon. Seconded by Cornish.  Motion carried. 


